
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY JANUARY 21, 2020 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the January 7, 2020 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19371-19404. 
c. Approve Mayor and Council Member Attendance at the League of Minnesota Cities 

Experienced Leaders Conference. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. West Hennepin Public Safety Director, Gary Kroells, December 2019 Monthly Report. 
 

8. Annual Consideration of Fee Schedule Amendments. 
 

a. RESOLUTION 20-0121-01 – Considering the Annual Update to the City’s Fee 
Schedule. 

 
9. Open/Misc. 

 
10. Adjourn. 



 

1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. January 7, 2019 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, JANUARY 7, 2020 –6:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Swearing in of newly elected Mayor and Council Members. 

 

4.  ROLL CALL  

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, McCoy, Grotting and Spencer 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner, City Attorney Vose, Public 

Works Supervisor Bode 

VISITORS: WHPS Director Kroells, Pete Kittock 

 

5. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the December 12, 2019 City Council Special Meeting and 

Workshop. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the December 17, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19332-19370. 

d. Set the Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting for Tuesday, April 7, 2020. 

e. 4th Qtr. Building Permit Report – For Information. 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, 

Spencer and McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

6. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 

7. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• None 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• None 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings:  

• None 



 

2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. January 7, 2019 

 

 

Betts attended the following meetings: 

• Police Commission Meeting 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: 

• Police Commission Meeting 

• Visit with June Sutton (oldest resident of Independence) 

• Met with Gina Piazza-Ward  

• Met with Tom Emmer in Otsego 

• Request from Congressman Phillips to meet with a farmer on January 22nd 

 

Horner attended the following meetings: 

• None 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• None 

 

8. Annual City Council Appointments. 

 

a. RESOLUTION 20-0107-01 - Annual Council Appointments. 

 

b. RESOLUTION 20-0107-02 - Approval of Planning Commission Appointments. 
 

Each year the City selects Council Members, consultants and staff to serve the City and fill roles  

supporting boards and commissions. The Council has the discretion to make appointments as necessary. 

The various positions are identified on the attached schedule. Council appointments that have typically 

changed on an annual basis are highlighted on the attached appointment schedule. 

 

In addition to the Council appointments, there are two Planning Commission terms that expired at the end of 

2019. Both Lieth Dumas and Tom Palmquist have offered to continue serving the City on the Planning 

Commission for another three-year term. Council will need to consider reappointment of both Planning 

Commissioners. 

 

Requested Action: 

It is recommended that the City Council discuss and approve the official 2020 appointments by 

adopting RESOLUTION No. 20-0107-01. It is further recommended that City Council consider the 

reappointment of Lieth Dumas and Tom Palmquist to a new three-year Planning Commission Term by 

adopting RESOLUTION No. 20-0107-02. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION 20-0107-01 - Annual Council 

Appointments. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, Spencer and McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. 

Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

Motion by Grotting, second by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION 20-0107-02 - Approval of Planning 

Commission Appointments. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, Spencer and McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: 

None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

 



 

3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. January 7, 2019 

 

 

9. Discussion Relating to Highway 12 and County Road 92 Intersection Improvements Project 

 

a. RESOLUTION 20-0107-03 – Approving Local Support and Municipal Consent for Preferred 

Design Alternative. 

 

Kaltsas stated Staff has been working with MNDOT and Hennepin County to better understand the potential 

benefits and limitations of Alternative 3a with a bypass. The City has spent the last couple of months trying to 

find solutions that would allow Alternative 4G to become feasible or to secure additional funding. To this 

point Hennepin County and MNDOT have not been willing to explore ways to realize development of 

Alternative 4G. Staff has also met with several outside engineering firms to review the alternatives and 

analyze the findings, benefits and potential limitations of both alternatives. Staff has identified the following 

key points for Council consideration: 

 

Alternative 3A with bypass will increase the average daily commute of eastbound traffic by 8-12 seconds per 

vehicle over Alternative 4G. Westbound traffic will have the same or negligible difference during peak times. 

In either alternative, the level of service (functionality) of the road will not drop below a high level of service. 

Alternative 3A with bypass will increase the potential daily conflicts (potential crashes) over Alternative 4G 

by approximately 60 per day. With either alternative, the potential daily conflicts versus the current road is 

greatly reduced. There will likely be an increase in the local cost to administer (police) the intersection for 

Alternative 3A with bypass. It is difficult to quantify the actual cost but based on discussions with police 

departments with similar intersections, the number of incidents will increase. 

 

The City was concerned about limiting the future mobility of the corridor with Alternative 3A with bypass. 

Based on a variety of conversations, both alternatives will allow the expansion of the corridor in the future. 

The overpass is being designed to accommodate a four-lane intersection. If a four-lane intersection is 

considered, the roundabout could potentially be designed as a four-lane intersection. The bond funding that 

was secured to develop this project has an expiration date of approximately 4 years from the date of approval 

(May 2017 approval, May 2021 expiration). As a result of this limitation and the time required to design, 

acquire right of way and bid this project, the City will need to act on approving an alternative if we want to 

realize an improved intersection and corridor.  

 

Staff will review in more detail, the additional discussions relating to the intersection, design, limitations and 

benefits that were discussed over the past month at the City Council Meeting. Based on the discussions 

that have been had and the unwillingness of MNDOT and Hennepin County to fund Alternative 4G, staff will 

be recommending that the Council approve Alternative 3A with bypass. 

 

McCoy asked the proposed capacity and are on/off ramps a potential down the road if needed. Kaltsas said 

there is a projected volume and this round-about is designed to accommodate that estimation which is peak 

flow. He noted round-about capacity could be increased to four lanes if needed in the future. An overpass 

solution would probably not be economically feasible as it would require two bridges and ramps. McCoy said 

he is concerned the capacity will be exceeded quickly and he prefers the 4G solution but will concede to this 

plan to make it happen. McCoy asked who would own the circle in the middle for maintenance. Kaltsas said 

the ROW acquisition has not yet been identified. McCoy asked about the local street on the south side of 

Highway 12. Kroells said he thought it would be considered a city street.  

 

Grotting said it would be good for the viewing audience to understand why a round-about has been 

determined to better than a controlled intersection. Kaltsas said the City has been involved in all discussions 

and the ultimate purpose is to make it as safe and possible. A round-about was graded the highest overall in 



 

4 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. January 7, 2019 

 

safety. A controlled intersection would doesn’t have the same rating and there is a higher chance of fatal 

incidents. 4G scored the same but this option is more cost effective. Johnson noted there is still hope for 

additional funds, but we don’t want to lose the support we got at this time. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 20-0107-03 – Approving Local Support 

and Municipal Consent for Preferred Design Alternative. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, Spencer and 

McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

10. Meeting Date Change for the March 3, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting to Accommodate the 

Presidential Nominating Primary.  

 

Kaltsas said the first April City Council Meeting (March 3rd) falls on the same date as the 2020 Presidential 

Nominating Primary. The City will need to reschedule the Council Meeting. The City has the option to 

reschedule the meeting to another date. Staff is seeking direction from Council on several alternative dates? 

 

Monday, March 2nd 

Monday, March 9th 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve City Council meeting date change from March 3rd to 

March 2nd, 2020. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, Spencer and McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. 

Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

11. Adjourn. 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Grotting to adjourn at 7:15 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, Betts, Spencer 
and McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 

_____________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 





















Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
2020 Fee Schedule – Update  

 
To: City Council 

 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 
 

 

Discussion: 
The City annually reviews and adopts the City’s fee schedule to ensure that the cost of providing 
various services is commensurate with the services provided.  The City identified several fees that 
should be amended based on the costs of providing services and or administration of the fees in 
2019.  In addition, the City will increase quarterly sewer charges in accordance with the adopted 
Sewer Rate Study.  After several years of steeper sewer rate increases, the City’s anticipated sewer 
rates are beginning to flatten with more typical increases recommended. 
 
The following fees are proposed to be amended: 
 

1. Right of way permit    $100 ($75 in 2019) 
 

2. Zoning Permit fee.  The City reviews sheds and agriculture buildings for compliance with zoning 
ordinances (i.e. – setbacks, wetland impacts, height limitations, grading, etc.) even though a 
building permit is not required.  The City typically spends ½ to 1 hour to review and approve these 
site plans.  The City has been charging the review under miscellaneous services but would like to 
include the fee in the fee schedule. 

 
a. Shed (120 SF or less), Ag Buildings $40 (not specified previously) 
 

3. Quarterly sewer charges are proposed to be amended in accordance with the City’s sewer charge 
study that was updated in January of 2017.  The City is in the process of updating the study for 
2020.  The updated study will be presented at an upcoming Council Meeting.  The quarterly sewer 
fees will be amended for 2020 as follows: 

 
a.   Quarterly sewer access charge    $231 ($220 in 2019) 
b.   Quarterly availability charge  $200 ($150 in 2019) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 



Page 2 

 

Council Recommendation: 
City Council is asked to consider approval of RESOLUTION NO. 19-0205-05 adopting the 2019 fee 
schedule. 
 
 
Attachments: Proposed Fee Schedule 2020 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-0121-01 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                      Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 
 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-0121-01 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN UPDATE TO THE  
CITY’S FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

 
  WHEREAS, the City has adopted a Fee Schedule to set forth fees for certain services 
provided by the City; 
 
  AND WHEREAS, the Fee Schedule is referred to in the City’s Code of Ordinances and 
determined to be necessary to ensure that the City is reimbursed for the cost of providing the 
services. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby adopted. 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
21st day of January 2020, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 
 



SEPTIC FEES 
 

Private On-site Permit $       300 
Mound Repair $   150 
Abandonment of System/Tank $     75 
Holding Tank with Pumping Agreement $   100 
              First Year $     50 
              Annual                         $         25 
Operating Permit Business $       175 
              First Year                  $       175 
              Annual                      $         75 
Mid-Size System                               $       400 
              (+ $1,000 escrow) 
Total Sewer Connection Fee $  3860 

- Includes $ 1250 City Sewer Permit  
- Includes $ 125 Street to house connect 
- Includes $ 2485 SAC (MUSA line) 

 
Quarterly sewer access charge $      231 
Quarterly availability charge $      200 
 (dwellings not connected to available sewer) 
SAC (MUSA line) $     2485 
Winter septic holding tank escrow* $     8000 
  *Plus Administrative fee $         55 
 
 
OTHER INSPECTION FEES 

 
Investigation/Re-inspection Fee  $     100/1st Hr     

    $        50/Hr. 
Fire Damage Inspection $     100 
 
 
COMMUNITY ROOM RENTAL (#) 
(maximum 200 guests) 
 
Non-Profit                                                $        75 
Security /Damage Deposit $      650 
False Fire Alarm $      350 
Organizations regular mtgs. $      100 
Events under 50 – resident $      150 
Events under 50 – non-resident $      250 
Events 50 – 100 – resident $      200 
Events 50 – 100 – non-resident $      400 
Events 101 – 150 – resident $      300 
Events 101 – 150 – non-resident $      500 
Events 151 – 200 – resident $      400 
Events 151 – 200 – non-resident $      750  
Funeral – resident $         50 
Funeral – non-resident $      100 
Wedding – resident $      400 
Wedding – non-resident $  1000 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM RENTAL (#) 
(seats 25 people) 
 
Rent per day $    100 

 with kitchen $    150 
 per hour  $      35 

 
OVERWEIGHT VEHICLE PERMIT FEES-AT THE 
DISCRETION OF PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 
 
Daily Permit (per truck/ day max 7 ton)   $     100 
Single Trip-Seasonal, Home Delivery      $     250 
Commercial Tow Truck (per occurrence) $     750 
No Permit                                            DOUBLE FEE 
Emergency-Well & Septic (max 7 ton) NO CHARGE 
Resident Annual to/from (max 5 ton)   NO CHARGE  
                                                                                                                                     
ASSEMBLY PERMIT FEES 
 
Small Assembly Permit (50+ attendees) $      25 
*Medium Assembly (100+ attendees)     $      25 
*Large Assembly (200+ attendees)         $    100 
*Requires West Hennepin Public Safety Deposit ($500)    

 
PARK RENTAL FEES (#) 
 
Commercial, daily - resident  $    200 
Commercial, daily - non-resident       $    300 
Individual, daily - resident $      75 
Individual, daily – non-resident $    150  
(Liability Insurance Required) 
   
 
FREQUENTLY CALLED NUMBERS 
 
Public Works Sup. Shawn Bode  763-479-0530 
City Administrator Mark Kaltsas  763-479-0527 
Building Inspector Bruce Satek  763-479-0531 
Asst. City Admin. Beth Horner  763-479-0527 
Office Assistant Trish Bemmels  763-479-0514 
West Hennepin Public Safety  763-479-0500 
Burn permits WHPS   763-479-0500 
Hennepin County            612-348-3000 

 
CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS ACCEPTED FOR FEES 
IDENTIFIED WITH THE (#) SYMBOL.  THE CITY 
WILL CHARGE THE LISTED FEE, PLUS 
APPLICABLE CHARGES FOR PROCESSING THE 
CREDIT CARD (CURRENTLY 2.75%, PLUS $0.50 
FOR ANY TRANSACTION LESS THAN $100). 

 
 
 
 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
Effective September 1, 2003 
Revised January 21, 2020 

 
 

 
 
 

1920 COUNTY ROAD 90 
INDEPENDENCE MN 55359 

 
PHONE: 763-479-0527 
FAX:      763-479-0528  

 
Website:  https://ci.independence.mn.us 

 
ALL FEES ARE NON-REFUNDABLE. 

Fees are Subject to change 



LIQUOR LICENSES 
 

Wine, on sale $  600 
On-sale intoxicating $5500 
Off-sale intoxicating $  240 
Sunday On-sale $  200 
Beer Off-sale $    50 
Beer On-sale $  500 
Setup $  500 
Investigation fee $  500 
Temporary liquor (1-4 days) $  100/day 
 
DOG LICENSES (#) 

 
Lifetime License $     20 
Replacement tag $      2 
Dangerous Dog annual fee $   500 
Dog Impound Fee 1st Violation $     35 
   2nd Violation $     70 
   3rd Violation $   105 

 
SERVICE FEES (#) 

 
Address Labels $    50 
Address List $    30 
Copies 8 ½ x 11 $   .25 
Copies, Oversize $   .50 
Copies: City Code Book $    60 
Copies: Subdivision Ordinance $    15 
Copies: Zoning Ordinance $    15 
Copies: Shoreland Ordinance $    15 
Copies: City Comp. Plan $    40 
Copies: Park Comp. Plan $    15 
Copies: Audit Book $    45 
City Address Map $      8 
Zoning Map (color) $      3 
Land Use Map (color) $      3 
Assessment Search written req. $    25 
Flood Zone Search written req. $    25 
Ag Preserve Application $    50 
Ag Preserve Expiration $    50 
NSF Check $    30 
Special Council Meeting fee $  250 
Election Filing fee $      2 
 

 
SIGN PERMIT (#) 

 
Temporary (administrative)              $   100 
Permanent Sign/Site Plan Review   $   250 
Farm Nameplate  Sign Permit          $    25 

ZONING FEES 
 
Extension $   250 
Appeal Admin. Decision $   750 
Move Building $   175 
Zoning Permit (Sheds, Ag buildings) $     40 
 

Grading Permit (100 cu yd or more)  $   500 
(if less than 100 cu. yd, no permit  
required.) 
 

Other (non-defined) Planning/Review: $   250 
 
Staff time in excess of application fees: 

 Professional per hour $   100 
Clerical per hour $     50 

      
Planning Application Type I-Application Fee: 
$1,250/Additional Fee Deposit $750 
 

 Minor Subdivision (Minor Subdivision (Lot 
Line Rearrangement, Lot Consolidation, 
Rural View Lot Subdivision, Lot  Split-2 lots 
or less) 

 Rezoning 
 Conditional Use Permit (residential) 
 Interim Use Permit (residential) 
 Right of Way or Easement Vacation 
 Simple Concept Plan 
 Simple Zoning Text Amendment 
 Simple Site Plan Review 

 
Planning Application Type II-Application Fee: 
$1,750/Additional Fee Deposit $1,500 
 

 Preliminary Plat (3 lots or more) - (plus 
$250 per lot) 

 Final Plat (plus $250 per lot) 
 Conditional Use Permit (commercial) 
 Interim Use Permit (commercial) 
 Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 Complex Concept Plan 
 Complex Site Plan Review 
 Complex Zoning Text Amendment 

 
After-the-fact fees  double 
 
Grading Permit (100 cu yd or more)  $   500 
(if less than 100 cu. yd, no permit  
required.) 
 

 
PARK DEDICATION FEES 

 
$3500 per lot to 4.99 acres + $750 per acre over 5 
acres. 

 
MISC. PERMIT/REIMBURSEMENT FEES 

 
Fireworks Dealer License    $      75 
Tower (wireless communication)         $  1000 
Mailbox Reimbursement                      $     125 

 
    LICENSES (#) 

 
 Garbage hauler/per year $   150 
 Per truck per year $     20 
 Tobacco $   100 

  1st Offense $     75 
  2nd Offense $   200 
  3rd Offense & over $   250 

 Solicitation $   100 
 

   FLAT FEE BUILDING PERMIT FEES (#) 
 

Mechanical  
Furnace $  100 
Air Conditioner $  100 
Gas Fireplace $  100 
Water Heater $    50 
Wood stove/fireplace $  100 
Chimney $  100 
Fuel tank removal $  100 
Lawn Sprinkler $  100 
Plumbing remodel $  100 
Plumbing new $  100 
  ($10 per fixture over five) 
Re-roof $  100 
Re-side $  100 
Window replacement same size $  100 (1) + 
   ($10 each additional opening)                              

 
 
Flat Fee State Permit Surcharge Add  $ 1 

(Example: A/C + Furnace = $201) 
 

Demolition $  100 
Driveway $  100 

    Right Of Way                                       $  100 
 
All Other Building Permits Based on Value 

 
Electrical Permits (Contact State) 




